
 

  

Dt: 09.09.2025 

 

The Manager  

Listing Department 

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.  

Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C-1,  

G Block Bandra-Kurla Complex Bandra (East) 

Mumbai 400 051 

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Sub: Submission of Annual Report in pursuance of Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 – Reg.,  
 

  
Pursuant to the Regulation 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we are submitting herewith the 24th   Annual Report of the 

Company along with the Notice of AGM and report of Board of Directors and Auditors  for the financial year 

20224-25, which is sent to the members in electronic mode. 

 

Kindly acknowledge the receipt of the same. 
 
Thanking you. 
 
This is for your information and records. 
 
Thanking you. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
For SAMEERA AGRO AND INFRA LIMITED 

  
SATYA MURTHY SIVALENKA 
MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CEO  
DIN 00412609 
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 24th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF 
THE MEMBERS OF THE SAMEERA AGRO AND INFRA LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN 
AS SAMEERA INFRA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED) WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY, 

THE 29TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2025 AT 2.00 P.M. THROUGH VIDEO 
CONFERENCING OR OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL MEANS TO TRANSACT THE 
FOLLOWING BUSINESS: 

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 

year ended 31st March, 2025 consisting of the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Cashflow 
Statement together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 
2. To re-appoint retiring Director Mrs. Sivalenka Kameswari (DIN: 00412669), who retires by rotation 

and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment and in this regard to pass the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec 152 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Sivalenka Kameswari (DIN: 00412669),  
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment, be and  
is hereby re-appointed as Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director of the Company, liable to 
retire by rotation.” 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 

3. Appointment of Mr. Surya Rao Ivaturi (DIN: 08204916) as a Director of the Company.  
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:  

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152 and 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(the Act) and rules made thereunder and read with the Articles of Association of the Company and 
other applicable provisions (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time 
being in force) Mr. Surya Rao Ivaturi (DIN: 08204916), who was appointed by the Board of Directors 
as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 27th day of February, 2025 and who ceases 
to hold office at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the 
Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 

 
By order of the Board of Directors  

For Sameera Agro and Infra Limited  
(Formerly known as Sameera Infra Projects Private Limited) 

 
Sd/- 

Satya Murthy Sivalenka 
Managing Director & CEO 

DIN: 00412609 
Date: 29.08.2025 
Place: Hyderabad 
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NOTES: 
 

1. Pursuant to Ministry's General Circular No.09/2023 dated September 25, 2023, General 
circular No.20/2020 dated 05.05.2020, General Circular No.14/2020 dated 08.04.2020, 
General Circular No.03/2022 dated 05.05.2022 and General Circular No.11/2022 dated 
28.12.2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (collectively referred to as ‘MCA 
Circulars’), the Company is being permitted for convening the Annual General Meeting 
('AGM') through Video Conferencing ('VC')/Other Audio Visual Means ('OAVM'), without 
the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. Further, Securities and Exchange 
Board of India ('SEBI'), vide its Circulars dated May 12, 2020, January 15, 2021, May 13, 
2022, and January 5, 2023 ('SEBI Circulars') and other applicable circulars issued in this 
regard, have provided relaxations from compliance with certain provisions of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing 
Regulations'). In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), the 
Listing Regulations and MCA Circulars, the 24th Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the 

Company is being held through VC/OAVM on Monday, the 29th day of September, 2025 at 
2.00 P.M. . IST. The deemed venue for the AGM will be the Registered Office of the Company 
at Plot No. 54 & 55, A.G. Arcade, Balaji Co-Operative Society, Transport Road, Secunderabad-
500009. 

 

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect 
of the business set out in the notice convening AGM of the Company and the relevant details 
of the proposed resolutions at this AGM as required under SEBI Listing Regulations and 
Secretarial Standards on General Meetings issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India (‘Secretarial Standard’) are annexed hereto. 

 

3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is 
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be 
a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars 
through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, 
the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM 
and hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and route map of AGM are not annexed to this 
Notice. 

 

4. Institutional shareholders/corporate shareholders (i.e., other than individuals, HUF’s, 
NRI’s, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of their respective Board 
or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing their representative to attend 
the AGM through VC/OAVM on their behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said 
shareholders can upload their Board Resolution/Power of Attorney/Authority Letter etc., 
by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution/Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab 
in their login or can be send to Scrutinizer’s email id: svacharyandco@yahoo.com. The said 
resolution/letter should be in the name format of “Sameera Agro and Infra Limited AGM”. 

 
5. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of 

names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 
 

6. Members attending the meeting through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of 
determining the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

 

7. In line with the Ministry's General Circular No.09/2023 dated September 25, 2023, General 
Circulars No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 issued by the MCA and the SEBI Circulars, Notice 
of the AGM is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail 

mailto:svacharyandco@yahoo.com
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addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories/RTA. The Notice of AGM is 
available on the Company’s website viz., www.sameeraagroandinfra.com and may also be 
accessed from the relevant section of the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e., National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com. 

 

8. Electronic copies of all the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice of the AGM 
and the Explanatory Statement shall be made available for inspection. Members desiring 
any information with regards to matters to be placed at the AGM may send their request in 
writing to the Company at info@sameeraagroandinfra.com. 

 
9. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and SEBI Circular, the facility for making 

nomination is available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members 
who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by 
submitting Form No. SH-13. If a member desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination 
and record a fresh nomination, he/she may submit the same in ISR-3 or SH-14. Members 
are requested to submit the said details to their Depository Participants in case the shares 
are held by them in dematerialized form and to the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent 
(‘RTA’) in case the shares are held by them in physical form, quoting their folio number. 

 

10. Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform the Company’s RTA immediately of: 
 

a. Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement. 
b. Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, 

account type, account number and address of the bank with pin code number, if not 
furnished earlier. 

 

11. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, 
e-mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (‘PAN’), 
mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and 
branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc. 

 
• For shares held in electronic form: to their Depository Participant only and not to the 

Company’s RTA. Changes intimated to the Depository Participant will then be 
automatically reflected in the Company’s records which will help the Company and its 
RTA provide efficient and better service to the Members. 

 

• For shares held in physical form: to the Company’s RTA in prescribed Form ISR -1 
and other forms pursuant to SEBI circular SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ 
CIR/2021/ 655 dated November 3, 2021, as per instructions mentioned in the form. 

 

12. Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/ 
P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 has mandated the listed companies to issue 
securities in dematerialized form only while processing service requests, viz., Issue of 
duplicate securities certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal/exchange 
of securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of securities certificate; 
consolidation of securities certificates/folios; transmission and transposition. Accordingly, 
Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed 
Form ISR-4. 

 
13. To support the ‘Green Initiative’ Members who have not yet registered their email 

addresses are requested to register the same with their DPs in case the shares are held by 
them in electronic form and with the Company’s RTA in case the shares are held by them in 

http://www.sameeraagroandinfra.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
mailto:info@sameeraagroandinfra.com
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physical form. 
 

14. M/s. KFin Technologies Limited, the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent, will be 
providing facility for participation in the AGM through VC/OAVM Facility, for voting through 
remote E-voting and E-voting during the AGM. 

 

15. Procedure of e-Voting and attending e-AGM: 
 

i. Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, including any statutory 
modification(s) or re- enactment thereof for the time being in force and Regulation 44 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and in 
terms of SEBI Circulars in relation to e-voting facility provided by listed entities, the 
Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e-
Voting services provided by M/s KFin Technologies Limited, on all the resolutions set 
forth in this Notice. The instructions for e-Voting are given herein below. 

ii. In pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 
2023 on “e-voting facility provided by Listed Companies”, e-voting process has been 
enabled to all the individual Demat account holders, by way of single login credential, 
through their Demat accounts/websites of Depositories/DPs to increase the efficiency 
of the voting process. 

iii. Individual Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to 
register again with the e-Voting service provider (ESP) thereby not only facilitating 
seamless authentication but also ease and convenience of participating in e-Voting 
process. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and e-mail ID with 
their DPs to access e-Voting facility. 

iv. The Members may cast their votes remotely on the dates mentioned herein below 
(‘remote e- voting’). 
 

Event Number and Timelines for Remote e-Voting 
 

E-voting Event Number 
(EVEN) 

Commencement of 
remote e-voting 

End of remote e-voting 

9209 22nd September, 2025, 
Monday, (9.00 A.M.) 

28th September, 2025, 
Sunday, (5.00 P.M.) 

 
 

Cut-off date 
 
The date, one day prior to the 
commencement of book closure, for 
determining the Members who are 
entitled to vote on the resolutions set 
forth in this Notice 

Thursday, 18th September, 2025 

Book closure dates 
Period during which the Register of 
Members and Share Transfer Books of 
the Company shall remain closed 

Thursday, 18th September, 2025 to 

Thursday, 25th September, 2025 (both 
days inclusive). 
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Remote e-voting period 
Period during which Members, as on the cut-off date, may cast their votes on 
electronic voting system from any location 

Start Date and Time 9.00 A.M. (IST) on Monday, 22nd   September, 2025, 
End Date and Time 5.00 P.M. (IST) on Sunday, 28th September, 2025. 

 
 

Event 2024-25 
Board Meeting Friday, 29th August, 2025 
AGM Date Monday, 29th September, 2025 
Inspection Period Thursday, 18th   September, 2025 to Thursday, 25th 

September, 2025 
Cut-off date/Record Date 
(AGM voting/Dividend) 

Thursday, 18th    September, 2025 

Book closure dates Thursday, 18th   September, 2025 to Thursday, 25th 
September, 2025 (both days inclusive). 

Remote e-voting period Monday, 22nd   September, 2025, (9.00 A.M.) to 
Sunday, 28th   September, 2025, (5.00 P.M.) 

Speaker Registration (last date) Monday, 22nd   September, 2025 
 

v. The remote e-voting will not be allowed beyond the aforesaid date and time and the 
remote e- voting module shall be forthwith disabled by KFintech upon expiry of the 
aforesaid period. 

vi. The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on Friday, August 29, 2025 
has appointed M/s S.V. Achary & Co., Company Secretaries (M. No: 5981, CP No: 4768), 
Hyderabad as Scrutinizer for conducting the process of remote e-voting in a fair and 
transparent manner. 

vii. Any person holding Shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders who 
acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending 
of the Notice and holding shares as of the cutoff date, may obtain login ID and 
password by sending request at evoting@kfintech.com. However, if he/she is already 
registered with Kfintech for remote e-voting then he/she can use his/her existing user 
id and password for casting the vote. 

viii. In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat mode and who acquires 
shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the 
Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date may follow steps mentioned below 
under “Login method for remote e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode.” 

ix. The details of the process and manner for remote e-Voting and e-AGM are explained 
herein below: 

 
Step 1: Access to Depositories e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding 

shares in Demat mode. 
Step 2: Access to KFintech e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical 

and non-individual shareholders in Demat mode 
Step 3: Access to join virtual meetings (e-AGM) of the Company on KFin system to participate 

in e-AGM and vote at the AGM. 
 
 
 
 

mailto:evoting@kfintech.com
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16. DETAILS ON STEP 1 ARE MENTIONED BELOW: 
 

I. Login method for remote e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode: 

 

Type of 
Shareholders 

Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding shares in 
Demat mode 
with NSDL 

1. User already registered for IDeAS facility: 
i. Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com 

ii. Click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” under 
‘IDeAS’ section. 

iii. On the new page, enter User ID and Password. Post 
successful authentication, click on “Access to e-Voting” 

iv. Click on Company name or e-Voting service provider and 
you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website 
for casting the vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

 
2. User not registered for IDeAS e-Services: 

i. To register click on link: https://eservices.nsdl.com 
ii. Select “Register Online for IDeAS” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 
iii. Proceed with completing the required fields. 
iv. Follow steps given in points 1 above. 

 
3. Alternatively, by directly accessing the e-Voting website of 

NSDL: 
 

i. Open URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
ii. Click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
iii. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User Id 

(i.e., Your sixteen-digit Demat account number held with 
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen. 

iv. Post successful authentication, you will be requested to 
select the name of the Company and the e-Voting Service 
Provider name, i.e., KFintech. 

v. On successful selection, you will be redirected to KFintech 
e-Voting page for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period. 

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 
below for seamless voting experience. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Individual 
Shareholders 
holding shares in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 

1. Existing user who have opted for Easi/Easiest: 
i. Visit URL: www.cdslindia.com 

ii. Click on Login icon & New System Myeasi 
iii. Login with your registered user id and password. 
iv. The user will see the e-Voting Menu. The Menu will 

have links of ESP i.e., Kfintech e-Voting portal. 
v. Click on e-Voting service provider name to cast your vote. 

 2.  User not registered for Easi/Easiest: 

 i. Option to register is available at CDSL website. Visit 
URL: www.cdslindia.com 

ii. Click on Login icon & New System Myeasi and the click 
on registration option. 

iii. Proceed with completing the required fields. 
iv. Follow the steps given in point 1 above. 

 3. Alternatively, by directly accessing the e-Voting website of 
CDSL: 

 i. Visit URL: 
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin 

ii. Provide your Demat Account Number and PAN. 
iii. System will authenticate user by sending OTP on 

registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. 

iv. After successful authentication, user will be provided links 
for the respective ESP, i.e., KFintech where the e- Voting is 
in progress. 

Individual i. You can also login using the login credentials of your Demat 
account through your DP registered with NSDL /CDSL for 
e- Voting facility. 

ii. Once logged-in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected 
to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. 

iii. Click on options available against Company name or e-
Voting service provider – KFintech and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of KFintech for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period without any further 
authentication. 

Shareholder 
login through 
their Demat 
accounts/ 
Website of 
Depository 
Participant 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin.
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Note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/Password are advised to use Forgot User ID 
and Forgot Password option available at respective websites. 
 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat mode for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL. 

 

Securities held with NSDL Securities held with CDSL 
Please contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free 
no.: 1800 1020 990 and 
1800 22 44 30 

Please contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a 
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at 022- 23058738 or 
022-23058542-43 

 
DETAILS ON STEP 2 ARE MENTIONED BELOW: 
 

II. Login method for remote e-Voting for shareholders holding shares in physical 
mode and non-individual shareholders holding shares in Demat mode: 

 
A. Members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository 

Participant(s), will receive an email from KFintech which will include details of E-
Voting Event Number (EVEN), USER ID and Password. They will have to follow the 
following process: 

 

i. Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://eMeetings.kfintech.com/. 
ii. Enter the login credentials (i.e., User ID and Password) In case of physical 

folio, User ID will be EVEN (E-Voting Event Number) 9209, followed by folio 
number. In case of Demat account, User ID will be your DP ID and Client ID. 
However, if you are already registered with KFintech for e-voting, you can use 
your existing User ID and Password for casting the vote. 

iii. After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN”. 
iv. You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to 

mandatorily change your password. The new password shall comprise of 
minimum 8 characters with at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a-
z), one numeric value (0-9) and a special character (@, #, $, etc.,). The system 
will prompt you to change your password and update your contact details 
like mobile number, email Id etc., on first login. You may also enter a secret 
question and answer of your choice to retrieve your password in case you 
forget it. It is strongly recommended that you do not share your password 
with any other person and that you take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential. 

v. You need to login again with the new credentials. 
vi. On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the “EVEN” i.e., 

‘Sameera Agro and Infra Limited- AGM” and click on “Submit” 
vii. On the voting page, enter the number of shares (which represents the 

number of votes) as on the Cut-off Date under “FOR/AGAINST” or 
alternatively, you may partially enter any number in “FOR” and partially 
“AGAINST” but the total number in “FOR/AGAINST” taken together shall not 
exceed your total shareholding as displayed/disclosed on the screen. You 
may also choose the option ABSTAIN. If the member does not indicate either 
“FOR” or “AGAINST” it will be treated as “ABSTAIN” and the shares held will 
not be counted under either head. 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://emeetings.kfintech.com/
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viii. Members holding multiple folios/Demat accounts shall choose the voting 
process separately for each folio/Demat accounts. 

ix. Voting must be done for each item of the notice separately. In case you do not 
desire to cast your vote on any specific item, it will be treated as abstained. 

x. You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on 
“Submit”. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm else 
“CANCEL” to modify. Once you have voted on the resolution(s), you will not 
be allowed to modify your vote. During the voting period, members can login 
any number of times till they have voted on the Resolution(s). 

xi. Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.,) 
are required to send scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of its Board 
Resolution/Authorisation Letter etc., together with attested specimen 
signature(s) of the duly authorised representative(s)to the Scrutinizer’s 
email id: svacharyandco@yahoo.com. The said resolution/letter should be in 
the naming format “Sameera Agro and Infra Limited-AGM”. 

xii. Members can cast their vote online from Monday, 22nd September, 2025, 

(9.00 A.M.) (IST) to Sunday, 28thSeptember, 2025 (IST) Voting beyond the 
said date shall not be allowed and the remote e-voting facility shall be 
blocked. 

 

B. Members whose email IDs are not registered with the Company/Depository 
Participant(s), and consequently to whom the Notice of AGM and e-voting 
instructions cannot be serviced will have to follow the following process: 

 

i. Member may send an e-mail request at the email id 
einward.ris@kfintech.com along with scanned signed copy of the request 
letter providing the email address, mobile number, self-attested PAN copy 
and Client Master copy in case of electronic folio and copy of share certificate 
in case of physical folio for sending the Notice of AGM and the e-voting 
instructions. 

ii. After receiving the e-voting instructions, please follow all steps above to cast 
your vote by electronic means. 

 
DETAILS ON STEP 3 ARE MENTIONED BELOW: 
 

III. Instructions for the Members to attend the e-AGM of the Company through 
VC/OAVM: 

 

i. Members will be provided with a facility to attend the e-AGM through video 
conferencing platform provided by M/s. KFin Technologies Limited. 

ii. Members may access the same at https://emeetings.kfintech.com by using the 
e-voting login credentials provided in the e-mail received from Kfintech. After 
logging in, click on the “videoconference” tab select the EVEN of the Company. 
Click on the video symbol and accept the meeting etiquettes to join the meeting. 

iii. Members who do not have User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten 
the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the procedure 
given in the remote e-Voting instructions. 

iv. Facility of joining the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be available for members on 
first come first served basis. 

v. Facility for joining e-AGM though VC/OAVM will be opened 15 minutes before 
the scheduled time of the meeting and will be kept open throughout the 
proceedings of the meeting. 

mailto:svacharyandco@yahoo.com
mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com
https://emeetings.kfintech.com/
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vi. Institutional members are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM through 

VC/OAVM. 
vii. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops/Desktops with 

Google Chrome (preferred browser), Safari, Internet Explorer, Microsoft Edge, 
Mozilla Firefox 22. 

viii. (viii)Members will be required to grant access to the webcam to enable 
VC/OAVM. Further, Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or 
through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video 
loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended 
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
IV. Instructions for Members for e-Voting during the e-AGM session: 

 

i. The members who have not cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be 
eligible to cast their vote through e-voting system available during the e-AGM. 

ii. E-voting during the AGM is integrated with the VC/OAVM platform. The 
members may click on the voting icon displayed on the screen to cast their votes. 

iii. A member can opt for only single mode of voting i.e., through remote e-voting or 
voting at the AGM. If a member cast votes by both modes, then voting done 
through remote e- voting shall prevail and vote at the AGM shall be treated as 
invalid. 

iv. Once the vote on a resolution(s) is cast by the member, the member shall not be 
allowed to change it subsequently. 

v. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members/list of Beneficial 

Owners as on Thursday, 18th September, 2025, being the cut-off date, are 
entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice. 

 

OTHER INSTRUCTIONS 
 

i. AGM Questions prior to e-AGM: Members who wish to post their questions prior 
to the meeting may login to https://emeetings.kfintech.com/ and click on “Post 
your Questions.” The Members may post their queries/views/questions by 
mentioning their name, Demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number. Please note that queries/questions of only those members will be 
answered who are holding shares of the Company as on the cut-off date. The window 
for posting the questions shall be opened from Monday, 22nd September, 2025 
(9.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m.). 

ii. Speaker Registration during e-AGM session: Members who wish to register as 
speakers, may login to https://emeetings.kfintech.com/ through the user id and 
password provided in the email received from KFintech and click on “Speaker 
Registration.” The Speaker Registration will be opened from Monday, 22nd   
September, 2025 (9.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m.). The Company reserves the right to 
restrict the speaker registration during the e-AGM session, depending upon 
availability of the time as appropriated for smooth conduct of the meeting and 
hence, encourages the members to send their questions/queries, etc. in advance as 
provided in note no. (i) above. 

 

17. In case a person has become a member of the Company after dispatch of AGM Notice but on 
or before the cut-off date for E-voting, he/she may obtain the User Id and Password in the 
manner as mentioned below: 

https://emeetings.kfintech.com/
https://emeetings.kfintech.com/
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i. If the mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No./DP ID Client ID, the 
member may send SMS: MYEPWD <space> E-Voting Event Number + Folio No. or DP ID 
Client ID to 9212993399. 

 

Example for NSDL MYEPWD <SPACE>XXXXIN12345612345678 
Example for CDSL MYEPWD <SPACE>XXXX1402345612345678 
Example for Physical MYEPWD <SPACE> XXXX1234567890 

 

ii. If e-mail address or mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No./DP ID 
Client ID, then on the home page of https://evoting.kfintech.com/ the member may click 
“Forgot Password” and enter Folio No. or DP ID Client ID and PAN to generate a 
password. 

 

18. In case of any query and/or grievance, in respect of voting by electronic means, members 
may refer to the Help & Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and E-voting user manual 
available at the download section of https://evoting.kfintech.com (Kfintech Website). 
Members may also contact KFintech at toll free number 1-800-309-4001 or write to them 
at einward.ris@kfintech.com for any further clarifications. 

 
19. Resolutions shall be deemed to have been passed on the date of e-AGM subject to receipt of 

requisite number of votes in favour of Resolutions. 
 

20. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of e-voting at the Meeting, scrutinize the votes 
cast at the Meeting (Insta Poll) and votes cast through remote e-voting, make a Consolidated 
Scrutinizer’s Report, and submit the same to the Chairman, within 2 days of the conclusion 
of the meeting. The results of e-voting along with the scrutinizers’ report shall be placed on 
the website of the Company www.sameeraagroandinfra.com and shall be intimated to the 
Stock Exchange immediately after declaration of results by the Chairman or by a person 
authorised by him. 

 

By order of the Board of Directors  
For Sameera Agro and Infra Limited (Formerly 

known as Sameera Infra Projects Private 
Limited) 

 
Sd/- 

Satya Murthy Sivalenka 
Managing Director & CEO 

DIN: 00412609 

 
Date: 29.08.2025 
Place: Hyderabad 

https://evoting.kfintech.com/
https://evoting.kfintech.com/
mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com
http://www.sameeraagroandinfra.com/
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 
 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013 
 
Item No. 3 
 
The Board of Directors had appointed Mr. Surya Rao Ivaturi (DIN: 08204916) as an Additional 
Director of the Company on 27th day of February, 2025 under Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013.  His term of office as an Additional Director expires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of 
the Company. In the meantime, the Company has received a notice under Section 160 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 from a member of the Company proposing his candidature for the office of 
Director. 
 
Mr. Surya Rao Ivaturi is a post-graduate and worked in defense for several years and retired as 
lieutenant Colonel and has more than 30 years of experience in various capacities in defense. 
 
Other than Mr. Surya Rao Ivaturi, no other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective 
relatives are concerned or interested in the Resolutions mentioned at Item No. 3 of the Notice.  
 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set forth in Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval of 
the Members. 

 
By order of the Board of Directors  

For Sameera Agro and Infra Limited 
(Formerly known as Sameera Infra Projects 

Private Limited) 
 

Sd/- 
Satya Murthy Sivalenka 

Managing Director & CEO 
DIN: 00412609 

 
Date: 29.08.2025 
Place: Hyderabad 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
To the Members, 

 
The Directors present before you the 24th Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited 
Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2025. 
 
1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY, OPERATIONS, STATE OF AFFARIS: 

 
The performance during the period ended 31st March, 2025 has been as under: 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. Operations 
 
Your Directors are very happy to report that the Company has posted the spectacular results and 
performance during the year under review. The Company has reported total revenue of Rs. 23,645.89 
Lakhs during the current year as compared to Rs. 18,214.07 Lakhs in the previous year and net profit of 
Rs.1,420.73 Lakhs in the current year as compared to Rs.1,072.07 Lakhs. Though the growth and revenue 
during the year under review has been moderate but still it is noteworthy to say that the growth is 
29.82% over the previous year. The Net Profits during the year has grown significantly during the year 
under review. 
 
 
3. Business and future outlook 

 Standalone Consolidated 

Particulars 

For the 
Year 

ended 
2024-
2025 

For the 
Year 

ended 
2023-
2024 

For the 
Year 

ended 
2024-
2025 

For the 
Year 

ended 
2023-
2024 

Income from Business Operations 23,645.89  18,214.07  23,645.89 18.214.07 

Other Income 0.00 0.00    0.00 0.00 

Total Income 23,645.89 18,214.07  23,645.89 18.214.07 

Total Expenses excluding Tax, 
Interest & Depreciation 

21,642.10  16,751.38  21,825.12 16.756.04 

Profit Before Tax, Interest and 
Depreciation 

2.003.79  1,462.68  1,820.77 1,458.03 

Less: Interest and other Financial 
Charges 

--  0.79  -- -- 

Profit before Tax and 
Depreciation 

2.003.79  1,461.90  1,820.77 1,458.03 

Less: Depreciation   3.86    

Profit before tax   1,458.03    

Less: Current Income Tax 583.50  386.23  583.60 386.23 

Less: Deferred Tax -0.44  -0.27  -0.44 -0.27 

Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax 1.420.73  1,072.07  1,237.71 1,072.07 

Earnings per share (Basic) 11.93 9.00 10.39 9.00 
Earnings per Share (Diluted) 11.93 9.00 10.39 9.00 
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Your Directors take immense pleasure in reporting that, during the past four years 2020-21, 2021-22, 
2022-23 and 2023-24 the business of the Company has witnessed spectacular growth of revenues till 
financial year 2023-24. Further, business of the Company has grown substantially during the financial 
year 2024-25 registering the growth at 29.82% in revenues compared to the previous year 2023-24. 
Further to report that the business of the Company has been bifurcated into two divisions viz., 
Infrastructure & Construction and Agri-Business. 

 
Further to mention that the Company has established over a period of 4 years wide network of dealers 
and distributors for the development of agri-business and poised for a bigger growth in the years to come. 
Your directors are confident that going forward with the same trend, the Company may come out with 
many more happy news and events rewarding its shareholders in the near future. 

 
The Company has listed its shares on emerge SME platform of National Stock Exchange India Ltd. 
 
As has been appraised to the Members in the Past about the investment of Rs.25.00 Crores for acquisition of 
74% stake in distillery business, M/s Amar Wineries situated at Humnabad, Bidar District, Karnataka, which 
has commenced operations in May, 2025 and is expected to yield multiple growth in that segment from 2025-
26 onwards. 

 
With the growth plans on hand and future growth strategies, the Company expects multiple growth in the 
years to come and promises to reward its shareholders with good returns on equity and investment and 
capital appreciation. 
 
4. Transfer to reserves 

 
The Company has transferred an amount Rs. 1,420.73 lakhs to reserves during the year under review. 
 
5. Share Capital 

 

The Paid-up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 2025 was Rs.11,90,98,000. 
 
6. Material Changes between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements 

relate and the date of the report, if any 
 

There is no material change in the financial year 2024-25. 
 

7. Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future 
 

During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders passed by the 
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 

 
8. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies 

 
As on March 31, 2025, the Company has got subsidiary by name M/s Globe Continental Distilleries Private 
Limited, in which the Company holds 74% stake. 

 
9. Statutory Auditor & Audit Report 
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The Company appointed M/s M M RS &Co (FRN: 013830S), Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad, Telangana  
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five years at the 23rd Annual General Meeting. 

 
The observations made by the auditors are self-explanatory and do not require any further clarifications. 
 
10. Dividend 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company does not recommend any Dividend for the Year. 
 
11. Public Deposits 

 
The Company has not invited or Accepted Deposits during the year from the Public covered under Section 73 
of the Companies Act, 2013, and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 
 
12. Particulars of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and 

outgo 
 

Your Company has no activities relating to Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption as required to 
be disclosed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(3) the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. However, your Company uses Information Technology extensively in its operations 
and also continues its endeavor to improve Energy Conservation and Utilization, Safety and Environment. 
 
Conservation of energy: 

i. Adequate measures have been taken for conservation of energy. 
ii. There is no additional investment and proposal for reduction of energy conservation. 

iii. As there is no additional investment, there is no impact on the business of the Company. 
 

Technology absorption: 
 

The Company has not absorbed any technology during the period under review. No Research and 
Development was carried out during the year under review. 
 

Foreign Exchange Earnings:  Nil 
Foreign Exchange Out Go:  Nil 

 
13. Details of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel including those who were appointed or 

have resigned during the year 
 

The Board of Directors of your Company comprised of the following Directors, as on March 31, 2025: 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Mr. SATYA MURTHY SIVALENKA  Managing Director and CEO (DIN: 00412609) 
Mrs. SIVALENKA KAMESWARI  Promoter Director (DIN: 00412669) 

Mr. DEVANAND CHALLAGULLA  Independent Director (DIN: 09820362) 
Mr. SRINIVASA RAO GANDLA  Independent Director (DIN: 09823244) 
Mr. CH V S E N D SESHASAI  Independent Director (DIN: 07447853) 
Mr. SURYA RAO IVATURI  Director (DIN: 08204916) (Appointed on 

27.02.2025)  
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COMPANY SECRETARY 

Mrs. SHIVANI JAIN  Company Secretary (PAN NO: COSPJ3053G) 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

Ms. RAMESH MADHAVAPEDDY  Chief Financial Officer 

 
14. Meetings of Board of Directors 

 
During the year 2024-25, the Board of Directors met 6 (Six) times viz. on, 17.04.2024, 14.05.2024, 
30.05.2024, 26.08.2024, 13.11.2024, 27.02.2025. 
 
Proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the Minutes Book 
as required as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 

 
15. Particulars of employees 
 
There is no Employee drawing remuneration aggregating to the limits prescribed pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 134(3)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is not applicable to the Company. 
 
16. Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 
 
The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual 
Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressed) Act, 2013. Internal 
Complaint Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. 
All employees are covered under this policy. 
 
The following is the summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed during the calendar 
year. 
 
• No. of complaints received: Nil 
• No. of complaints disposed off: Nil 

 
17. Explanation or comments on qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers 

made by the Auditors and the Practicing Company Secretary in their reports 
 

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks and disclaimers of the Statutory Auditors in 
their Auditors’ Reports on the Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2024-25. The provisions 
relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable to the Company. 
 
18. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments 
 
In the Financial Year 2024-25 the Company has not given any Loan, Guarantees or made any Investments 
exceeding sixty per cent of its Paid-up Share Capital, Free Reserves and Securities Premium Account or 
One Hundred Percent of its Free Reserves and Securities Premium Account, whichever is higher, as 
prescribed in Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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19. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties 
 
Since all related party transactions entered into by your Company were in the ordinary course of business 
and were on an arm’s length basis and during the year under review, the Company has not entered into 
any contracts with the related parties. The details of the existing arm’s length contract are enclosed in 
Form AOC-2 as Annexure-I. 
 
20. Internal Control System and their adequacy 
 
The Company has in place proper and adequate internal control systems commensurate with the nature 
of its business, size and complexity of its operations. Internal Control Systems comprising of policies and 
procedures are designed to ensure liability of financial reporting, timely feedback on achievement of 
operational and strategic goals, compliance with policies, procedure, applicable laws and regulations, and 
that all assets and resources are acquired economically, used. 
 
21. Secretarial Standards 
 
The Company Complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards. 
 
22. Risk Management Policy 
 
The Company has proper procedures in place for development and implementation of a Risk Management 
Policy for the Company including identification therein of elements of risk, if any, which in the opinion of 
the Board may threaten the existence of the Company. 
 
23. Material Changes and Commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 

 
The material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company, which have 
occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company, to which the Financial Statements relate 
and the Date of the Report have been reported under the head ‘Business and future outlook’ hereinbefore. 
 
24. Significant and Material Orders passed by Regulators or Courts or Tribunals 

 
During the Financial Year 2024-25 no significant and material orders has been passed by Regulators or 
Courts or Tribunals impacting the Going Concern Status and Company’s Operations in future. 
 
25. Directors’ Responsibility Statement 

 
In terms of Provisions of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with relevant Rules made 
there under, your Directors confirm that: 

 

i. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025, the 
applicable Accounting Standards had been followed, along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures; 

ii. They have selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made Judgments 
and Estimates that are Reasonable and Prudent so as to give a True and Fair View of the State of 
Affairs of your Company at the end of the Financial Year and of the profit and loss of your Company 
for that period; 
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iii. They had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

iv. They have prepared the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025 on a 
Going Concern Basis; and 

v. They have devised proper Systems to ensure Compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
Laws and that such Systems were Adequate and Operating Effectively. 

 
Further, your directors confirm that your Company has adequate Internal Systems and Controls in place to 
ensure compliance of Laws applicable to your Company. 

 
EVENT BASED DISCLOSURES 
 
During the year under review, the Company has not taken up any of the following activities: 

 
1. Issue of sweat equity share: The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year 

under review and hence no information as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with 
Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014. 

 
2. Issue of shares with differential rights: The Company has not issued any shares with differential 

rights and hence no information as per provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) 
of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014. 

 
3. Issue of shares under employee’s stock option scheme: The Company has not issued any equity 

shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme during the year under review and hence no 
information as per provisions of Section 62(1)(b) of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the Companies 
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 

 
4. Non- Exercising of voting rights: During the year under review, there were no instances of non-

exercising of voting rights in respect of shares purchased directly by employees under a scheme 
pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act read with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and 
Debentures) Rules, 2014. 

 
5. Disclosure on purchase by Company or giving of loans by it for purchase of its shares: The 

Company did not purchase or give any loans for purchase of its shares. 
 
6. Buy back shares: The Company did not buy-back any shares during the period under review. 
 
7. Disclosure about revision: Since the Company did not undergo any revision, this clause is Not 

Applicable to the Company for the period under review. 
 
8. Preferential Allotment of Shares: The Company did not allot any shares on preferential basis 

during the period under review. 
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26. Corporate Social Responsibility 
 
The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 becomes 
applicable to the Company from the year 2024-25, as the Company has posted net profit of Rs.10.03 crores 
for the preceding financial year 2022-23. The Company is in the process of constituting the relevant 
committee of the Board for taking care of CSR activities of the Company by formulating CSR Policy. 
 
27. Cost Record 
 
The provisions of Cost Audit as per section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 doesn’t applicable to the 
Company. 
 
28. Secretarial Audit Report 
 
Mr. S.V.N. Charyulu, Proprietor of S.V. Achary & Co., Company Secretaries, (FCS No. 5981, C. P. No. 4768) 
Hyderabad, was appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 as 
per Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rules made thereunder.  

 
The Secretarial Audit Report submitted in the prescribed form MR - 3 is attached as Annexure VI and forms 
part of this report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations, adverse 
remarks or disclaimer.  

 
The Company is compliant with the Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors ("SS-1") 
and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings ("SS-2"), issued by 'The Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India' (“ICSI”). 
 

29. Acknowledgement 
 
Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation, for the sincere contributions received from the 
Government, Bankers, Customers, Employees and all the Stakeholders, those who are associated with the 
Company. 
 

 
By order of the Board of Directors  

For Sameera Agro and Infra Limited (Formerly known 
as Sameera Infra Projects Private Limited) 

 
Sd/- 

Satya Murthy Sivalenka 
Managing Director & CEO 

DIN: 00412609 

Sd/- 
Kameswari 

Sivalenka Director 
DIN: 00412669 

 
Place: Hyderabad 
Dated: 29.08.2025 
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Annexure-I 
FORM NO. AOC -2 

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related 
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 
length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: Nil 

 
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

 
SL. No. Particulars Details 

a) Name (s) of the related 
party & nature of 
relationship 

Mr. Sivalenka Satya Murthy 
Managing Director and Shareholder of the Company 

b) Nature of contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transaction 

Property taken on rent by the Company 
1. Property taken on rent for Registered Office of the Company, 

property location and address: Plot No.54 & 55, A.G. Arcade 
Balaji Cooperative Housing Society, Diamond Point, Gunrock, 
Secunderabad – 500009 

2. Property taken on rent for Corporate Office, property location 
and address 610, 6th Floor, Vasavi Eden Square, St. Johns 
Road, Secunderabad – 500003. 

3. Managerial Contract for appointment as Managing Director 
and CEO at Remuneration of Rs.48,00,000 P.A. 

c) Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements
/tr ansaction 

Contract I Lease agreement for Registered Office entered into 
2017 valid up to July 2023 renewed for further period of 5 (Five) 
years from 2023. 
Contract II Lease of premises was entered into in the year 2023 
w.e.f. 01.04.2023 for period of 5 (Five) years 

d) Salient terms of the 
contracts or 
arrangements or 
transaction including 
the value, if any 

Contract I Rent for Registered Office Rs. 90,000 per annum 
period of lease 5 (Five) years 
Contract II Rent for premises for Corporate Office 
Rs.12,00,000 per annum - period of lease 5 (Five) years. 
Period of lease can be renewed for another period of 5 (Five) 
years. 

e) Approval by the Board 
of Director 

Registered Office lease agreement renewed for further period 
of 5 (Five) years from April, 2023. 
 
Corporate Office lease agreement was approved in April, 2023, 
w.e.f. 01.04.2023. 
 
Managerial Contract approved in May, 2023, w.e.f 01.04.2023. 
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f) Amount paid, if any Contract I Rs.90,000 per annum as rent towards Lease of 

Registered Office. 
Contract II Rs.12,00,000 per annum as rent towards 
Corporate Office 
Rs.48,00,000 remuneration per annum for the year 2024-25 

 

 
By order of the Board of Directors  

For Sameera Agro and Infra Limited (Formerly known 
as Sameera Infra Projects Private Limited) 

 
Sd/- 

Satya Murthy Sivalenka 
Managing Director & CEO 

DIN: 00412609 

Sd/- 
Kameswari 

Sivalenka Director 
DIN: 00412669 

 
Place: Hyderabad 
Dated: 29.08.2025 
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT POLICY: 
 
 

As provided under clause 17 (5) (a) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015 all Board Members and the 
Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Business Ethics and Code of 
Conduct for the year ended on March 31, 2025. 

 

 
By order of the Board of Directors  

For Sameera Agro and Infra Limited (Formerly known 
as Sameera Infra Projects Private Limited) 

 
Sd/- 

Satya Murthy Sivalenka 
Managing Director & CEO 

DIN: 00412609 

Sd/- 
Kameswari 

Sivalenka Director 
DIN: 00412669 

 
Place: Hyderabad 
Dated: 29.08.2025 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

Company has got paid up capital of Rs.11,90,98,000 (Eleven Crores Ninety Lakhs Ninety Eight thousand) 
and Reserves and surplus of Rs.108,61,63,273 (One hundred eight crores sixty one lakhs s ixty three 
thousand two hundred seventy three only) where by net worth of the Company exceeds Rs.25.00 Crores 
and consequently provisions of Corporate Governance of SEBI LODR Regulations become applicable and 
hence required to comply with the Corporate Governance provisions. The Company takes Corporate 
Governance as serious responsibility towards its stakeholders with a view to ensure transparency in 
conducting Corporate affairs and enhancing transparency levels in the business affairs by providing time 
to time information to the stakeholders and periodical review of operations by the Board of Directors 
with a proper intimation to the stakeholders of the Company. 

 
Company believes in Corporate Governance as a measure of Good Governance while allowing 
stakeholders to take informed decisions. 
 
In accordance with Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the report containing the details of Corporate Governance systems and 
processes at Sameera Agro and Infra Limited as follows: 
 
1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE: 
 

The Corporate Governance Structure in the Company assigns responsibilities and entrusts authority 
among different participants in the organization viz. the Board of Directors, the Senior Management, 
Employees, etc. The Company believes that good Corporate Governance is a continuous process and 
strives to improve the Corporate Governance practices to meet shareholder’s expectations. 

 
2. BOARD DIVERSITY: 
 

The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse board in its success. We believe 
that a truly diverse board will leverage differences in thought, perspective, knowledge, skill, regional 
and industry experience, cultural and geographical background, age, ethnicity, race and gender, 
which will help us, retain our competitive advantage. The Board has adopted the Board Diversity 
Policy which sets out the approach to diversity of the Board of Directors. The Board Diversity Policy 
is available on our website www.sameeraagroandinfra.com 

 
3. BOARD EVALUATION: 
 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, mandates that the Board 
shall monitor and review the Board evaluation framework. The framework includes the evaluation 
of directors on various parameters such as: 

 
• Board dynamics and relationships 
• Information flows 
• Decision-making 
• Relationship with stakeholders 
• Company performance and strategy 
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• Tracking Board and committees’ effectiveness 
• Peer evaluation 

 
The Companies Act, 2013 states that a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of 
its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors. Schedule IV of the 
Companies Act, 2013 states that the performance evaluation of independent directors shall be done 
by the entire Board of Directors excluding the director being evaluated. 

 
The evaluation of all the directors and the Board as a whole was conducted based on the criteria and 
framework adopted by the Board. The evaluation process has been explained in the corporate 
governance report. The Board approved the evaluation results as collated by the nomination and 
remuneration committee. 
 

4. LISTING AGREEMENT: 
 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), on September 2, 2015, issued SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the aim to consolidate and 
streamline the provisions of the Listing Agreement for different segments of capital markets to 
ensure better enforceability. The said regulations were effective December 1, 2015. Accordingly, the 
Company entered into fresh Listing Agreement with SME platform of National Stock Exchange India 
within stipulated time. 
 

5. COMPLIANCE WITH SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2015: 
 
In compliance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the 
Company has signed uniform listing agreement with National Stock Exchange India and framed the 
following policies which are available on Company's website i.e. www.sameeraagroandinfra.com 
 
• Board Diversity Policy 
• Policy on preservation of Documents 
• Risk Management Policy 
• Whistle Blower Policy 
• Familiarization programme for Independent Directors 
• Related Party Policy 
• Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel 

 
6. SAMEERA AGRO AND INFRA LTD CODE OF CONDUCT FOR THE PREVENTION OF INSIDER 

TRADING: 
 

The Board of Directors has adopted the Insider Trading Policy in accordance with the requirements 
of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015. The Insider Trading Policy of the 
Company lays down guidelines and procedures to be followed, and disclosures to be made while 
dealing with shares of the Company. The policy has been formulated to regulate, monitor and ensure 
reporting of deals by employees and to maintain the highest ethical standards of dealing in Company 
securities. 
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The Insider Trading Policy of the Company covering code of practices and procedures for fair 
disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information and code of conduct for the prevention of 
insider trading is available on our website www.sameeraagroandinfra.com. 

 
7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 
The primary role of the Board is that of trusteeship to protect and enhance shareholder value through 
strategic supervision of the Company. As trustees, the Board has a fiduciary responsibility towards 
all the shareholders and ensures that the Company has clear goals aligned to shareholder value and 
its growth. The Board sets strategic goals and seeks accountability for their fulfillment. The Board 
also provides direction and exercises appropriate control to ensure that the Company is managed in 
a manner that fulfils all stakeholders’ aspirations and societal expectations. The Board, as part and 
parcel of its functioning, also periodically reviews its role. 

 
8. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD: 

 
The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is an appropriate combination of executive 
and non-executive Directors with right element of independence. As on March 31, 2025, the 
Company’s Board comprised of 6 Directors, one professional Director. In addition, there are three 
independent Directors on the Board including one Woman Director. In terms of clause 17(1) (b) of 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company is required to have one half of total Directors as 
independent Directors. The non-executive Directors are appointed or re-appointed based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee which considers their overall 
experience, expertise and industry knowledge. One third of the non-executive Directors other than 
independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation every year and are eligible for reappointment, 
subject to approval by the shareholders. 

 
9. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS: 

 
During the year 2024-25, the Board of Directors met 6 (Six) times viz. on, 17.04.2024, 14.05.2024, 
30.05.2024, 26.08.2024, 13.11.2024, 27.02.2025. 
 
The maximum time gap between any two meetings was less than four months. The agenda for each 
meeting is prepared well in advance, along with explanatory notes wherever required and 
distributed to all Directors. 

 
10. ATTENDANCE AND DIRECTORSHIPS HELD: 

 
As mandated by the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, none of the Directors are members of more 
than ten Board-level committees nor are they chairman of more than four committees in which 
they are members. Further all the Directors have confirmed that they do not serve as an 
independent director in more than seven listed companies or where they are whole-time directors 
in any listed Company, then they do not serve as independent director in more than three listed 
companies. 

 
The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board meeting during 
the year and at last Annual General Meeting, as also the number of Directorships and Committee 
memberships held by them in other companies are shown in Table 1. 
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Name of the Director No. of 

Meetings 
held 

No. of 
Meetings 
attended 

Whether 
Attended Last 

AGM 
SATYA MURTHY SIVALENKA 6 6 Yes 
SIVALENKA KAMESWARI 6 6 Yes 
DEVANAND CHALLAGULLA 6 6 Yes 
SRINIVASA RAO GANDLA 6 6 Yes 
CH V S E N D SESHASAI 6 6 Yes 
Mr. SURYA RAO IVATURI (Appointed on 
27.02.2025)   

6 0 NO 

 
 

11. INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD: 
 
The Board has complete access to all information of the Company and is regularly provided advanced 
detailed information as a part of the agenda papers or is tabled therein. In addition, detailed quarterly 
performance report by the CFO is presented in the quarterly Board meeting, encompassing all facets 
of the Company’s operations during the quarter, including update of key projects, outlook and 
matters relating to environment, health & safety, corporate social responsibility etc. The following 
information is provided to the Board as a part of the agenda papers: 
 
• Annual and Quarterly financial statements for the Company and the Accounting Policy 
• Minutes of the meetings of the Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board 
• Annual business plan 
• Information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the level of Board, 

including the appointment or removal of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary, 
whenever required 

• Expansion projects and its status monitoring 
• Fatal or serious accidents, injuries or any material environmental problems, if any 
• Any material default in financial obligations to and by the Company, or substantial non- payment 

for goods sold by the Company, if any 
• Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions, whenever necessary 
• Any significant development in human resources / industrial relations including long-term wage 

agreement, major voluntary retirement scheme, etc. 
• Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by the management to limit 

the risks of adverse exchange rate movement, if material 
• Quarterly disclosure of all the investments made 
• Material non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory nature or listing requirements and 

shareholders service, such as non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer and others, if any 
• Quarterly review of compliance status under various laws applicable to the Company 
• Substantial non-payment of goods sold by the Company except disputes 
• Related Party Transactions, if they are not at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of 

business 
• Half-yearly summary of bank guarantees are not available as the Company is currently not 

maintaining any active accounts. 
• All other matters required to be placed before the Board for its review / information / approval 

under the statutes, including SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. 
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12. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 
The Board members are provided with necessary documents, reports, internal policies and site visits 
to enable them to familiarize with the Company's operations, its procedures and practices. Periodic 
presentations are made at the Board and Board Committee Meetings, on business and performance 
updates of the Company business, strategy and risks involved. Detailed presentations on the 
Company's business segments were made at the meetings of the Directors held during the year. 
Details of the same are available on www.sameeraagroandinfra.com. 

 
13. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD: 

 
The Company has four Board-level Committees - Audit Committee, Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Risk Management Committee. 

 
All decisions pertaining to the constitution of Committees, appointment of members and fixing of 
terms of service for Committee members are taken by the Board of Directors. Details on the role and 
composition of these Committees, including the number of meetings held during the financial year 
and the related attendance, are provided below: 

 
14. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

 
A. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF TERMS OF REFERENCE: 

 
• Overview of the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial information 

to ensure that the financial statements reflect a true and fair position and that sufficient and 
credible information is disclosed. 

• Recommending the appointment and removal of external auditors, fixation of audit fee and also 
approval for payment for any other services. 

• Discussion with external auditors before the audit commences, of the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

• Reviewing the financial statements and draft audit report including quarterly / half yearly financial 
information. 

• Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board, 
focusing on: 

 
a. Any changes in accounting policies and practices; 
b. Qualification in draft audit report; 
c. Significant adjustments arising out of audit; 
d. The going concern concept; 
e. Compliance with accounting standards; 
f. Compliance with stock exchange and legal requirements concerning financial 

statements and 
g. Any related party transactions 
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• Reviewing the Company’s financial and risk management’s policies. 
• Disclosure of contingent liabilities. 
• Reviewing with management, external and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal control 

systems. 
• Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, including the audit character, the structure of 

the internal audit department, approval of the audit plan and its execution, staffing and seniority 
of the official heading the department, reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal 
audit. 

• Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow-up thereon. 
• Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into the matters 

where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material 
nature and reporting the matter to the Board. 

• Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in payments to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

• Reviewing compliances as regards the Company’s Whistle Blower Policy. 
 

B. COMPOSITION, MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE: 
 

There were four (4) Audit Committee Meetings held during the year. 
 

Name Designation Category No. of 
Meetings 

held 

No of  
Meetings 
attended 

Mr. Srinivasa Rao Gandla Chairperson Director 4 4 

Mr. Devanand Subba Rao Chllagulla Member Director 4 4 

Mr. V S E N D Seshasai. CH Member Director 4 4 

 
 

15. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
 
The Committee comprises of three non-executive independent Directors 
 

Name Designation Category No. of 
Meetings 

held 

No of  
Meetings 
attended 

Mr. Srinivasa Rao Gandla Chairperson Director 4 4 

Mr. Devanand Subba Rao Chllagulla Member Director 4 4 

Mr. V S E N D Seshasai. CH Member Director 4 4 

 
A. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF TERMS OF REFERENCE: 
 

• To approve the fixation/revision of remuneration of Executive Directors of the Company and 
while approving: 
 

a. to take into account the financial position of the Company, trend in the industry, 
appointee’s qualification, experience, past performance, past remuneration etc. 

b. to bring out objectivity in determining the remuneration package while striking a 
balance between the interest of the Company and the Shareholders. 
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• To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their 
appointment and /or removal. 

• To carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance. 
• To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 

a director, and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, 
key managerial personnel and other employees. 

• To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board. 
• To recommend/review remuneration of the Managing Director and Whole-time Director(s) 

based on their performance and defined assessment criteria. 
 

16. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall evaluate each individual with the objective of 
having a group that best enables the success of the Company’s business. 
 

Policy: 
 
1. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and the Board, shall review on annual basis, 

appropriate skills, knowledge and experience required of the Board as a whole and its individual 
members. The objective is to have a board with diverse background and experience that are relevant 
for the Company’s operations. 

2. In evaluating the suitability of individual Board member the NR Committee may take into account 
factors, such as: 
• General understanding of the Company’s business dynamics, global business and 

social perspective; 
• Educational and professional background 
• Standing in the profession; 
• Personal and professional ethics, integrity and values; 
• Willingness to devote sufficient time and energy in carrying out their duties and 

responsibilities effectively. 
2.1 The proposed appointee shall also fulfil the following requirements: 

• shall possess a Director Identification Number; 
• shall not b disqualified under the companies Act, 2013; 
• shall endeavour to attend all Board Meeting and Wherever he is appointed as a Committee 

Member, the Committee Meeting; 
• shall abide by the code of Conduct established by the Company for Directors and senior 

Management personnel; 
• shall disclose his concern or interest in any Company or companies or bodies corporate, 

firms, or other association of individuals including his shareholding at the first meeting of the 
Board in every financial year and thereafter whenever there is a change in the disclosures 
already made; 

• Such other requirements as may be prescribed, from time to time, under the companies 
Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 and 
other relevant laws. 
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3. Criteria of independence 
3.1 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall assess the independence of Directors at time 

of appointment/ re-appointment and the Board shall assess the same annually. The Board shall 
re-assess determinations of independence when any new interest or relationships are disclosed 
by a Director. 

3.2 The criteria of independence shall be in accordance with guidelines as laid down in companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

3.3 The independent Director shall abide by the “code for independent Directors “as specified 
in Schedule IV to the companies Act, 2013. 

4. Other directorships/ committee memberships 
4.1 The Board members are expected to have adequate time and expertise and experience to 

contribute to effective Board performance. Accordingly, members should voluntarily limit 
their directorships in other listed public limited companies in such a way that it does not 
interfere with their role as director of the Company. The NR Committee shall take into 
account the nature of and the time involved in a directory service on other Boards, in 
evaluating the suitability of the individual Director and making its recommendations to 
the Board. 

4.2  A Director shall not serve as director in more than 20 companies of which not more than 
10 shall be public limited companies. 

4.3 A Director shall not serve as an independent Director in more than 7 listed companies and 
not more than 3 listed companies in case he is serving as a whole- time Director in any 
listed Company. 

4.4 A Director shall not be a member in more than 10 committees or act as chairman of more 
than 5 committee across all companies in which he holds directorships. 

For the purpose of considering the limit of the committee, Audit committee and stakeholder’s 
relationship committee of all public limited companies, whether listed or not, shall be included 
and all other companies including private limited companies, foreign companies and companies 
under section 8 of the companies Act, 2013 shall be excluded. 

17. STAKEHOLDER’S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
i. The stakeholders’ relationship committee is constituted in line with the provisions of 

Regulation 20 of SEBI Listing Regulations read with section 178 of the Act. 
ii. The broad terms of reference of the stakeholders’ relationship committee are as under: 

• Consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the Company including 
redressal of investor complaints such as transfer or credit of securities, non-receipt of 
dividend / notice / annual reports, etc. and all other securities-holders related 
matters. 

• Consider and approve issue of share certificates (including issue of renewed or 
duplicate share certificates), transfer and transmission of securities, etc. 

• The composition of the stakeholders’ relationship committee and the details of 
meetings attended by its members are given below: 

• There were four (4) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Meetings attendeance 
 

Name Designation Categor y No of Meetings 
held 

No of Meetings 
attended 

Mr. Srinivasa Rao Gandla Chairman Director 4 4 

Mr. Devanand Subba Rao Chllagulla Member Director 4 4 

Mr. V S E N D Seshasai. CH Member Director 4 4 
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18. NAME AND DESIGNATION OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER: 
The Company Secretary Mrs. Shivani Jain,  (PAN NO: COSPJ3053G) Company Secretary cum 
Compliance Officer of the Company. 

A. DETAILS OF COMPLAINTS/REQUESTS RECEIVED, RESOLVED AND PENDING DURING THE 
YEAR 2024-25 

 
INVESTOR COMPLAINTS 

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2025 
Pending at the beginning of the year Nil 
Received during the year Nil 
Disposed of during the year Nil 
Remaining unresolved at the end of the year Nil 

 
a. PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP OR TRANSACTIONS OF THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

VIS-À-VIS THE LISTED COMPANY: The Non- Executive Directors have no pecuniary relationship 
or transactions. 

A. CRITERIA FOR MAKING PAYMENTS TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: 
Policy: 

1. Remuneration to Executive Director and key managerial personnel 
1.1  Executive Director Mr. Satyamurthy Sivalenka Managing Director and CEO being 

Executive Director of the Company drawing Managerial Rs.48,00,000 P.A. 
1.2 Reasonable remuneration has been paid to the key managerial personnel of the 

Company. 
2. Remuneration to Non – Executive Directors 

2.1 No remuneration is payable to the Non – Executive Directors of the Company. 
B. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS PAID DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25 AND OTHER 

DISCLOSURES - Mr. Satya Murthy Sivalenka, Managing Director and CEO ----- 
Rs.48,00,000 

D. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING: 
As per clause 7 of the schedule IV of the Companies Act (Code for Independent Directors), a 
separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company (without the attendance of non-
independent directors) was held on 14.02.2025, to discuss: 

1. Evaluation of the performance of Non-independent Directors and the Board of Directors as 
whole; 

2. Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the management 
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties. 
All the Independent Directors of the Company were present at the meeting. 
As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Company regularly familiarizes Independent 
Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the 
industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company etc. The details of the 
familiarization program is given at Company’s website (www.sameeraagroandinfra.com Investor 
Relations) 

REMUNERATION POLICY: 
The objectives of the remuneration policy are to motivate Directors to excel in their performance, 
recognize their contribution and retain talent in the organization and reward merit. The 
remuneration levels are governed by industry pattern, qualifications and experience of the 
Directors, responsibilities should and individual performance. 

POLICY FOR SELECTION OF DIRECTORS AND DETERMINING DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE: 
1. Scope: 
This policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for 
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identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and to determine the independence of 
Directors, in case of their appointment as independent Directors of the Company. 
2. Terms and References: 

2.1 “Director” means a director appointed to the Board of a Company. 
2.2 “Nomination and Remuneration Committee means the committee constituted in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015. 

2.3. “Independent Director” means a director referred to in sub-section (6) of Section 149 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. 

Remuneration policy for Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees: 
1. Scope: 

1.1 This policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination and Remuneration 
committee for recommending to the Board the remuneration of the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees of the Company. 

2. Terms and Reference: 
 

In this policy the following terms shall have the following meanings: 
2.1 “Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company. 
2.2 “key managerial personnel” means 

(i) The Chief Executive Office or the managing director or the 
manager; 

(ii) The Company secretary; 
(iii) The whole-time director; 
(iv) The chief finance Officer; and 
(v) Such other office as may be prescribed under the companies Act, 

2013 
2.3 “Nomination and Remuneration committee” means the committee 

constituted by Board in accordance with the provisions of section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. 

 
E. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION: 

As per section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with clause VII (1) of the schedule IV and rules 
made thereunder, the independent directors of the Company had a meeting on 14.02.2025 
without attendance of non-independent directors and members of management. In the meeting 
the following issues were taken up: 

 
(a) Review of the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole; 
(b) Review of the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the 

views of executive directors and non-executive directors; 
(c) Assessing the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 

Company management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and 
reasonably perform their duties. 

The meeting also reviewed and evaluated the performance of non-independent directors. 
 

The meeting also reviewed and evaluated the performance of the Board as whole in terms of the 
following aspects: 
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• Preparedness for Board/Committee meetings 
• Attendance at the Board/Committee meetings 
• Guidance on corporate strategy, risk policy, corporate performance and overseeing acquisitions 

and disinvestments. 
• Monitoring the effectiveness of the Company’s governance practices 
• Ensuring a transparent board nomination process with the diversity of experience, knowledge, 

perspective in the Board. 
• Ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting systems, including the 

independent audit, and that appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems for 
financial and operational control and compliance with the law and relevant standards. 
It was noted that the Board Meetings have been conducted with the issuance of proper notice and 
circulation of the agenda of the meeting with the relevant notes thereon. 

19. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
A.) COMPOSITION: 
The Details of composition of the Committee are given below: 

 
Name Designation Category 

Mr. Srinivasa Rao Gandla Chairman Director 

Mr. Devanand Subba Rao Chllagulla Member Director 

Mr. V S E N D Seshasai. CH Member Director 

 
B) ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING: 

• Framing of Risk Management Plan and Policy 
• Overseeing implementation of Risk Management Plan and Policy 
• Monitoring of Risk Management Plan and Policy 
• Validating the process of risk management 
• Validating the procedure for Risk minimisation. 
• Periodically reviewing and evaluating the Risk Management Policy and practices with 

respect to risk assessment and risk management processes. 
• Continually obtaining reasonable assurance from management that al known and 

emerging risks have been identified and mitigated or managed. 
20. DETAILS ON GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 
A. LOCATION, DATE AND TIME OF LAST AGM AND SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS THERE AT AS 

UNDER: 
 

Financial 
Year 

Date Time Location Special 
Resolution 

2023-24 25.09.2024 11.00 
A.M. 

Plot No.54 & 55, A.G. Arcade, Balaji Co-
operative Housing Society, Diamond 
Point, Gunrock, Secunderabad-500009 

2 

During the year under review, the Company has no Extra-ordinary general meeting of the Company. 
 

B. PASSING OF RESOLUTIONS BY POSTAL BALLOT 
 

There were no resolutions passed by the Company through Postal Ballot during the financial year 2024-
25. 
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21. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
 

The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial results will be sent to the Stock Exchanges immediately 
after the Board approves the same and these results will also be published in prominent daily 
newspapers. These financial statements, press releases are also posted on the Company’s website, at 
www.sameeraagroandinfra.com. As the financial performance of the Company is well published, 
individual communication of half yearly results are not sent to the shareholders. 
 
22. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 

A) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: 
Day, Date and Time: Monday, 29th September, 2025 
Venue: Registered Office: S1, PLOT NO.54 & 55, A.G. ARCAD BALAJI COOOPERATIVE HOUSING SODCIETY, 

DIOMOND POINT, GUNROCK, SECUNDERABAD – 500009 
Financial year to which the Annual General Meeting relates: 2024-25 

 
FINANCIAL YEAR AND FINANCIAL YEAR CALENDAR 2024-25 (TENTATIVE SCHEDULE) 

Financial calendar: 2025-26 
Adoption of Quarterly results for the Quarter ending 
• 30th June, 2025: 14thAugust, 2025 
• 30th September, 2025 :1st/2nd week of November, 2025 
• 31st December, 2025 :1st/2nd week of February, 2026 
• 31st March, 2026: on or before 30th May 2026 Annual 

General Meeting (Next year): September, 2026 
B) DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE: No Dividend was declared during the Financial Year 2024-25 

 
C) NAME AND ADDRESS OF EACH STOCK EXCHANGE WHERE THE COMPANIES SECURITIES ARE 

LISTED: 
EXCHANGE: NSE LTD (SME EMERGE) 
CODE: SAIFL 

 
D) IN CASE SECURITIES ARE SUSPENDED FROM TRADING: NIL 

 
E) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents: 

KFIN TECHNOLOGIES LTD 
 

Selenium Towers, B Plot No: 31 & 32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, 
Serilingampally, Hyderabad – 500 032, Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com, Website: 
www.kfintech.com SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM: 

 
The Transfer of Shares is affected by the CDSL/NSDL/Company as prescribed under the Law and 
after necessary approval of the Board/Share Transfer Committee, wherever required. 

 
F) DEMATERIALISATION & LIQUIDITY OF SHARES: 

 
Trading in Company’s shares is permitted only in dematerialized form for all investors. The ISIN 
allotted to the Company’s scrip is INE0PZA01015. Investors are therefore advised to open a demat 
account with a Depository participant of their choice to trade in dematerialized form. The Shares 
of the Company are listed in National Stock Exchange India Ltd SME segment. 
 
 
 

http://www.sameeraagroandinfra.com/
mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com
http://www.kfintech.com/
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G) ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDANCE: 

 
S1, PLOT NO.54 & 55, A.G. ARCAD BALAJI COOOPERATIVE HOUSING SOCIETY, DIOMOND POINT, 
GUNROCK, SECUNDERABAD – 500009 

 
A) BOOK CLOSURE DATE: 

 
Thursday, 18th September, 2025 to Thursday, 25th September, 2025 (both days inclusive). 
 
LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES: 

The equity shares of the Company are listed on National Stock Exchange India Ltd under 
SME segment. 

 
B) ELECTRONIC CONNECTIVITY: 

Demat ISIN Number: INE0PZA01015 
 

NATIONAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED 
Trade World, Kamala Mills Compound 
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel Mumbai – 
400 013. 

 
C) CENTRAL DEPOSITORY SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED 

Marathon Futurex, A-Wing, 25th floor, NM Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013. 
 

23. OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 

A. MATERIALLY SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

During the year under review, the Company had not entered in to any materially 
significant transaction with any related party. Remuneration paid (if any) to directors 
being NIL, is well within the limits of Section 197 read with Schedule V of Companies Act, 
2013. During the year, the Company had not entered into any other 
contract/arrangement/transaction with related parties which could be considered 
material in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party 
transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. 
All the related party transactions during the year are in the ordinary course of business 
and on arm’s length basis. 

 
B. COMPLIANCES: 

 
There are no penalties imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any 
other statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three 
years. 
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C. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
 

With a view to adopt the highest ethical standards in the course of business, the Company 
has a whistle blower policy in place for reporting the instances of conduct which are not 
in conformity with the policy. Directors, employees, vendors or any person having 
dealings with the Company may report non- compliance to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee, who reviews the report. Confidentiality is maintained of such reporting and it 
is ensured that the whistle blowers are not subjected to any discrimination. No person 
was denied access to the Audit Committee. 

 
D. COMPLIANCE WITH THE MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS AND ADOPTION OF THE NON-

MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015. 
All mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 have been appropriately complied with and the status of non-
mandatory requirements is given below: 
 

• As there is no Chairman, the provisions for Non-Executive Chairman are not applicable. All other 
requirements of the Board during the year have been complied with. 

 
• Shareholders’ rights: The half yearly and annual results along with the press release are uploaded 

on the website of the Company www.sameeraagroandinfra.com. The soft copy of the quarterly 
results is also sent to the shareholders who have registered their e-mail addresses. 

• Audit qualifications: Company’s financial statements are unqualified. 
 

E. WEB-LINK WHERE POLICY FOR DETERMINIG ‘MATERIAL’ SUBSIDIARIES IS 
DISCLOSED. 

 
The Company does not have any material subsidiaries during the financial year 2024-25 
 

F. DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 
 
The Company has complied with the appropriate accounting policies and has ensured that 
they have been applied consistently. There have been no deviations from the treatment 
prescribed in the Accounting Standards notified under Section 129 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 
 

G. DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE 
ACOUNT 
 
As per Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company hereby discloses the details of 
unpaid/unclaimed dividend and the respective share thereof as follows: 

Aggregate No. of 
Shareholders and the    
outstanding 
shares in the suspense 
account at 
the beginning of the 
year. 

No. of shareholders who 
approached the 
Company for transfer of 
shares from suspense 
account during the year. 

No. of shareholders to 
whom shares were 
transferred    from 
suspense account 
during the year. 

Aggregate No. of 
Shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in 
the suspense account at 
the end of the year. 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

http://www.srivenmultitech.com./
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** Voting Right on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims the 
shares. 

 
 

 

 
By order of the Board of Directors  

For Sameera Agro and Infra Limited (Formerly known 
as Sameera Infra Projects Private Limited) 

 
Sd/- 

Satya Murthy Sivalenka 
Managing Director & CEO 

DIN: 00412609 

Sd/- 
Kameswari 

Sivalenka Director 
DIN: 00412669 

 
Place: Hyderabad 
Dated: 29.08.2025 
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CERTIFICATE BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR CUM CEO OF THE COMPANY 
 

To 
The Board of Directors 
Sameera Agro and Infra Ltd 

 
Dear Sirs, 
As required under Regulation 17(8) read with Part B, Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we state that: 

 
1. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 

31st March, 2025 and to the best of our knowledge and belief; 
a. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement nor omit any 

material fact nor contain statements that might be misleading, and 
b. These statements present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
2. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 

during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the Company’s code of conduct. 
 

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls, I have evaluated the 
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and I have disclosed to the auditors 
and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or the operation of internal controls, if any, of 
which I was aware and the steps that I have taken or propose to take and rectify the identified 
deficiencies and, 

4. That we have informed the auditors and the audit committee of: 
 

a) Significant changes in the internal control during the year; 
b) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have 

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 
c) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement of any 

employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system. 
 

By order of the Board of Directors  
For Sameera Agro and Infra Limited 

(Formerly known as Sameera Infra Projects 
Private Limited) 

 
Sd/- 

Satya Murthy Sivalenka 
Managing Director & CEO 

DIN: 00412609 
 

Place: Hyderabad  
Dated: 29.08.2025 
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AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

To 
The Members of 
Sameera Agro and Infra Ltd 

 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by SAMEERA AGRO AND INFRA 
LIMITED (‘the Company’) for the year ended 31st March, 2025, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27, 
clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and paragraph C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) with BSE 
Limited. 

 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s 
management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the 
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit 
nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify 
that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the 
abovementioned Listing regulations. 

 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
For M M R S & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN:013830S  

 
 
 
 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 29.08.2025 

Sd/-  
CA Naresh Tummalapalli 
Partner  
M. No. 252120 
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SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 
 

[Pursuant to Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

 
OF SAMEERA AGRO AND INFRA LIMITED FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

 
I, S.V.N. Charyulu, Proprietor of S.V. Achary & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries have conducted the 
review of the compliance of the applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by Sameera Agro and Infra Limited (hereinafter referred as ‘the listed entity’), having its 
Registered Office at Plot No.54 & 55, A.G. Arcade, Balaji Co-operative Housing Society, Transport Road, 
Gunrock, Secunderabad-500009, Telangana. Secretarial Review was conducted in a manner that 
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and to 
provide my observations thereon.: 

 
a. all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by Sameera Agro and 

Infra Limited (CIN: U45201TG2002PLC038623) (“the listed entity”) having its Registered Office at 
Plot No.54 & 55, A.G. Arcade, Balaji Co-operative Housing Society, Transport Road, Gunrock, 
Secunderabad-500009, Telangana. 

b. the filings/submissions made by the listed entity to the Stock Exchanges, 
c. website of the listed entity, 
d. any other document/filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this Report. 

 
For the financial year ended March 31, 2025 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the 
provisions of: 
a. the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the regulations, circulars, 

guidelines issued thereunder; and 
b. the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the 

regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the SEBI; 
 

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have 
been examined, includes: 

 
a. Securities and Exchange Board of India (LODR) Regulations, 2015; 
b. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 
c. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; - Not Applicable during the period under review 
d. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; - Not Applicable 

during the period under review 
e. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021; - Not Applicable during the period under review 
f. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; - Not Applicable during the period under review 
g. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
h. other regulations as applicable. 

 
and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder; 

 
and based on the above examination, I hereby report that, during the Review Period the compliance status of 
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the listed entity is appended below: 
 

a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ 
guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below: 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Complia
nce 
Require
ment 
(Regulati
ons 
/circul
ars/ 
guideli
nes 
includi
ng 

specific 
clause) 

Regulat
ion/ 
Circular 
No. 

Dev
i- 
atio
ns 

Acti
on 

Tak
en 
by 

Type of 
Action 

Detail
s of 
Violat
ion 

Fine 
Amo
unt 

Observati
ons 

/Remark
s of the 

Practicin
g 

Company 
Secretary 

(PCS) 

Manag
e 
-

ment 
Respo
nse 

Remar
ks 

     Advisory/ 
Clarification

/ Fine/ 
Show Cause 

Notice/ 
Warning 

etc. 

     

None 
 

I hereby report that, during the review period the compliance status of the listed entity with the following 
requirements: 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Compliance 
Status 
(Yes/ 

No/NA) 

Observations/ 
Remarks by 
PCS* 

1. Secretarial Standards: 
The compliances of the listed entity are in accordance with the 
applicable Secretarial Standards (SS) issued by the Institute of 
Company 
Secretaries of India (ICSI). 

 
Yes 

 

2. Adoption and timely updation of the Policies: 
• All applicable policies under SEBI Regulations are 

adopted with the approval of board of directors of the 
listed entities. 

• All the policies are in conformity with SEBI Regulations 
and have been reviewed & updated on time, as per the 
regulations/ 
circulars/guidelines issued by SEBI. 

 
 

Yes 
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3. Maintenance and disclosures on Website: 
• The listed entity is maintaining a functional website. 
• Timely dissemination of the documents/ information 

under a separate section on the website. 
• Web-links provided in annual corporate governance 

reports under 
• Regulation 27(2) are accurate and specific which 

redirects to the relevant document(s)/section of the 
website. 

 
 
 

Yes 

 

4. Disqualification of Director(s): 
None of the director(s) of the listed entity is/are 
disqualified under 
Section 164 of Companies Act, 2013 as confirmed by the listed 
entity 

Yes  

5. Details related to subsidiaries of listed entities have been 
examined 
w.r.t. : 
(a) Identification of material subsidiary companies. 
(b) Disclosure requirement of material as well as other 

subsidiaries. 

 
NA 

 
The Company  has 

one subsidiary 

6. Preservation of Documents: 
The listed entity is preserving and maintaining records as 
prescribed under SEBI Regulations and disposal of records as 
per policy of preservation of documents and archival policy 
prescribed under SEBI 
LODR Regulations, 2015. 

 
 

Yes 

 

7. Performance Evaluation: 
The listed entity has conducted performance evaluation of 
the board, 
independent directors and the committees at the start of 
every 

 
Yes 

 

 financial  year/during  the  financial  year  as  prescribed  
in  SEBI 
Regulations. 

  

8. Related Party Transactions: 
(a) The listed entity has obtained prior approval of audit 

committee for all related party transactions; 
(b) In case no prior approval obtained, the listed entity shall 

provide detailed reasons along with confirmation 
whether the 
transactions were subsequently 
approved/ratified/rejected by the audit committee. 

 
Yes 

 
 

NA 

 
 
 
 

Refer Point No.8(a) 

9. Disclosure of events or information: 
The listed entity has provided all the required disclosure(s) 
under 
Regulation 30 along with Schedule III of SEBI LODR 
Regulations, 2015 within the time limits prescribed 
thereunder. 

 
Yes 

 

10. Prohibition of Insider Trading: 
The listed entity is in compliance with Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) 
SEBI 

Yes  
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(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 

11. Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if any: 
No action(s) has been taken against the listed entity/its 
promoters/ directors/subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock 
Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating 
Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars) under 
SEBI Regulations and circulars/guidelines 
issued thereunder 

 
 

Yes 

 
No action taken 
during the year 
under review 

12. Additional Non-compliances, if any: 
No additional non-compliances observed for any SEBI 
regulation/circular/guidance note etc., except as reported 
above. 

Yes  

 
Observations/Remarks by PCS are mandatory if the compliance status is provided as ‘No’ or ‘NA’ 

 
Assumptions & limitation of scope and review: 

 
1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and 

information furnished, are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity. 
2. My responsibility is to report based upon our examination of relevant documents and information. 

This is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion. 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of account of 

the listed entity. 
4. This report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A (2) of the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the listed entity 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the listed 
entity. 

 
For S.V. Achary & Co., 
Company Secretaries 

 
Sd/- 
S.V.N. 
Charyulu 
(Propreitor) 
FCS: 5981 
CP No.: 4768 

 
Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 29.08.2025 
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ANNEXURE II 
 

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS 
 

The Board of Directors 
M/s Sameera Agro and Infra Limited  
 
Dear Sir, 
 
I undertake to comply with the conditions laid down in Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with section 149 and Schedule IV of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in relation to conditions of independence and in particular: 

 
(a) I declare that upto the date of this certificate, apart from receiving director’s remuneration, I did not 

have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, its promoter, its 
directors, senior management or its holding Company, its subsidiary and associates as named in the 
Annexure thereto which may affect my independence as director on the Board of the Company. I 
further declare that I will not enter into any such relationship/transactions. However, if and when I 
intend to enter into such relationships/transactions, whether material or non-material I shall keep 
prior approval of the Board. I agree that I shall cease to be an independent director from the date of 
entering into such relationship/transaction. 

 
(b) I declare that I am not related to promoters or persons occupying management positions at the Board 

level or at one level below the board and also have not been executive of the Company in the 
immediately preceding three financial years. 

 
(c)  I was not a partner or an executive or was also not partner or executive during the 

preceding three years, of any of the following: 
(i)  the statutory audit firm or the internal audit firm that is associated with the Company and 
(ii)  the legal firm(s) and consulting firm(s) that have a material association with the 

Company 
 

(d)  I have not been a material supplier, service provider or customer or lessor or lessee of the Company, 
which may affect independence of the director, and was not a substantial shareholder of the 
Company i.e., owning two percent or more of the block of voting shares. 

 
Thanking You. 
 
Yours Faithfully, 
 
Sd/- 
DEVANAND CHALLAGULLA 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 
DIN: 09820362 

 
Date: 29.08.2025  
Place: Hyderabad 
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ANNEXURE II 
 

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS 
 

The Board of Directors 
M/s Sameera Agro and Infra Limited  
 
Dear Sir, 
 
I undertake to comply with the conditions laid down in Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with section 149 and Schedule IV of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in relation to conditions of independence and in particular: 

 
(e) I declare that upto the date of this certificate, apart from receiving director’s remuneration, I did not 

have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, its promoter, its 
directors, senior management or its holding Company, its subsidiary and associates as named in the 
Annexure thereto which may affect my independence as director on the Board of the Company. I 
further declare that I will not enter into any such relationship/transactions. However, if and when I 
intend to enter into such relationships/transactions, whether material or non-material I shall keep 
prior approval of the Board. I agree that I shall cease to be an independent director from the date of 
entering into such relationship/transaction. 

 
(f) I declare that I am not related to promoters or persons occupying management positions at the Board 

level or at one level below the board and also have not been executive of the Company in the 
immediately preceding three financial years. 

 
(g)  I was not a partner or an executive or was also not partner or executive during the 

preceding three years, of any of the following: 
(i)  the statutory audit firm or the internal audit firm that is associated with the Company and 
(ii)  the legal firm(s) and consulting firm(s) that have a material association with the 

Company 
 

(h)  I have not been a material supplier, service provider or customer or lessor or lessee of the Company, 
which may affect independence of the director, and was not a substantial shareholder of the 
Company i.e., owning two percent or more of the block of voting shares. 

 
Thanking You. 
Yours Faithfully, 
 
Sd/- 
SRINIVASA RAO GANDLA 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 
DIN: 09823244 

 
Date: 29.08.2025  
Place: Hyderabad  
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ANNEXURE II 
 

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS 
 

The Board of Directors 
M/s Sameera Agro and Infra Limited  
 
Dear Sir, 
 
I undertake to comply with the conditions laid down in Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with section 149 and Schedule IV of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in relation to conditions of independence and in particular: 

 
(c) I declare that upto the date of this certificate, apart from receiving director’s remuneration, I did not 

have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, its promoter, its 
directors, senior management or its holding Company, its subsidiary and associates as named in the 
Annexure thereto which may affect my independence as director on the Board of the Company. I 
further declare that I will not enter into any such relationship/transactions. However, if and when I 
intend to enter into such relationships/transactions, whether material or non-material I shall keep 
prior approval of the Board. I agree that I shall cease to be an independent director from the date of 
entering into such relationship/transaction. 

 
(d) I declare that I am not related to promoters or persons occupying management positions at the Board 

level or at one level below the board and also have not been executive of the Company in the 
immediately preceding three financial years. 

 
(c)  I was not a partner or an executive or was also not partner or executive during the 

preceding three years, of any of the following: 
(i)  the statutory audit firm or the internal audit firm that is associated with the Company and 
(ii)  the legal firm(s) and consulting firm(s) that have a material association with the 

Company 
 

(d)  I have not been a material supplier, service provider or customer or lessor or lessee of the Company, 
which may affect independence of the director, and was not a substantial shareholder of the 
Company i.e., owning two percent or more of the block of voting shares. 

 
Thanking You. 
Yours Faithfully, 
 
Sd/- 
CH V S E N D SESHASAI 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 
DIN: 07447853 

 
Date: 29.08.2025  
Place: Hyderabad 

 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS SAMEERA AGRO AND 
INFRA LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial statements 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SAMEERA AGRO AND INFRA 
LIMITED (Formerly: SAMEERA INFRA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Cash Flow Statement, and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and 
a summary of significant accounƟng policies and other explanatory informaƟon. 

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the informaƟon required by the Companies Act, 2013(“the 
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian AccounƟng 
Standards prescribed under SecƟon 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounƟng principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash 
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
AudiƟng (SAs) specified under SecƟon 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibiliƟes under those Standards are 
further described in Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements secƟon 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiliƟes in accordance with these requirements 
and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

Key Audit MaƩers 
Key audit maƩers are those maƩers that, in our professional judgment, were of the most significance in 
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These maƩers were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these maƩers. We have determined the maƩers 
described below to be the key audit maƩers to be communicated in our report. 



Sr. 
No 

Key Audit MaƩer Auditor’s Response 

1 Revenue recogniƟon – Sale of goods 
Refer to Note 3 (h) “Revenue RecogniƟon” 
of the Standalone Financial Statements 
under Significant AccounƟng Policies. 
Revenue from the sale of goods is 
recognized when control of the products 
being sold is transferred to the customer, 
which is mainly upon delivery and when 
there are no longer any unfulfilled 
obligaƟons. 

The Ɵming of revenue recogniƟon is 
relevant to the reported performance of 
the Company. The Management considers 
revenue as a key measure for the 
evaluaƟon of performance. There is a risk 
of revenue being recorded before the 
control is transferred. 

We have performed the following principal audit 
procedures in relaƟon to revenue recognized which 
include a combinaƟon of tesƟng internal controls 
and substanƟve tesƟng as under: 

• Assessing the appropriateness of the
Company's revenue recogniƟon accounƟng
policies in line with Ind AS 115 ("Revenue
from Contracts with Customers") and
tesƟng thereof.

• EvaluaƟng the integrity of the general
informaƟon and      technology ("IT")
control environment and tesƟng the
operaƟng effecƟveness of key IT
applicaƟon controls.

• Understanding the revenue recogniƟon
process, evaluaƟng the design and
implementaƟon of the Company's controls
with respect to revenue recogniƟon.

• TesƟng the effecƟveness of such controls
over revenue cut-off at year-end.

• TesƟng the supporƟng documentaƟon for
sales transacƟons recorded during the
period closer to the year-end and
subsequent to the year-end, including
examinaƟon of credit notes issued
subsequent to the year's end to determine
whether revenue was recognized in the
correct period.

• Performing analyƟcal procedures on
current year revenue based on monthly
trends and where appropriate, conducƟng
further inquiries and tesƟng.



InformaƟon Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other informaƟon. The other informaƟon 
comprises the informaƟon included in the Report of the Directors and Management Discussion & Analysis 
but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements, and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 
 Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other informaƟon and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon In connecƟon with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other informaƟon and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other informaƟon is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informaƟon, 
we are required to report that fact.  
We have nothing to report in this regard fraud or error. In preparing the standalone financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to conƟnue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, maƩers related to going concerned and using the going concern basis of accounƟng unless 
the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operaƟons or has no realisƟc 
alternaƟve but to do so. 
The Company's Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporƟng 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objecƟves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these standalone financial statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepƟcism throughout the audit. We also: 

• IdenƟfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecƟng a material misstatement resulƟng from fraud is higher than for one resulƟng
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenƟonal omissions, misrepresentaƟons, or
the override of internal control.



• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under SecƟon 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has an adequate internal
financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the
operaƟng effecƟveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounƟng policies used and the reasonableness of accounƟng
esƟmates and related disclosures made by the management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounƟng
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or condiƟons that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to conƟnue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw aƩenƟon
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or condiƟons
may cause the Company to cease to conƟnue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentaƟon, structure, and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transacƟons and events in a manner that achieves fair presentaƟon.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or 
in the aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quanƟtaƟve materiality and 
qualitaƟve factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work in evaluaƟng the results of our work, and (ii) 
evaluaƟng the effect of any idenƟfied misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other maƩers, the planned 
scope and Ɵming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we idenƟfy during our audit. 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relaƟonships and other 
maƩers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
From the maƩers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those maƩers that 
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit maƩers. We describe these maƩers in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulaƟon precludes public disclosure about the maƩer or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a maƩer should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communicaƟon. 



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by SecƟon 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:
A. We have sought and obtained all the informaƟon and explanaƟons which to the best of

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
B. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examinaƟon of those books.
C. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive

Income, the Cash Flow Statement, and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

D. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under SecƟon 133 of the Act.

E. On the basis of the wriƩen representaƟons received from the directors as of March 31,
2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
of March 31, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of SecƟon 164(2) of the
Act.

F. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operaƟng effecƟveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operaƟng effecƟveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

G. With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of SecƟon 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the
remuneraƟon paid/provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of SecƟon 197 of the Act.

H. With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us:
a. The Company does not have any pending liƟgaƟons which effects its financial posiƟon

in its standalone financial statements.
b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivaƟve contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.
c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the

Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund by the Company

i. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person(s) or enƟty(ies), including foreign enƟƟes (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in wriƟng or otherwise,



 that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or enƟƟes idenƟfied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
(“UlƟmate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the UlƟmate Beneficiaries. 

ii. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or enƟty(ies),
including foreign enƟƟes.

iii. Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our noƟce that has
caused us to believe that the representaƟons under subclause (i) and (ii) of Rule
11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

iv. The Company has not declared any dividend during the year and there is no
pending dividend payable that are declared in the previous year in accordance
with SecƟon 123 of the Act, as applicable

As stated in the Note under the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Board of Directors of the Company 
has proposed a final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing 
Annual General MeeƟng. The dividend proposed is in accordance with SecƟon 123 of the Act, as 
applicable. 
Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using 
accounƟng soŌware which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the 
Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of SecƟon 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
maƩers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For and on behalf of 
For MMRS & CO 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 013830S 

CA Naresh Tummalapalli 
Partner 
M.No.252120
UDIN: 25252120BMJIND4914

Date:27-05-2025 
Place: Hyderabad 



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ secƟon of our 
report of even date) 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub secƟon 3 of SecƟon 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements of 
SAMEERA AGRO AND INFRA LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025, in conjuncƟon with our audit 
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
with reference to standalone financial statements based on the internal control with reference to 
standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essenƟal 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibiliƟes 
include the design, implementaƟon, and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevenƟon and detecƟon of frauds and errors, 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, and the Ɵmely preparaƟon of reliable financial 
informaƟon, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
the standalone financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on AudiƟng 
prescribed under SecƟon 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial with reference to standalone financial 
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effecƟvely in all material 
respects. 



Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operaƟng effecƟveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tesƟng and evaluaƟng the design and operaƟng 
effecƟveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to standalone 
financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements 
A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporƟng and the 
preparaƟon of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounƟng principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transacƟons and disposiƟons of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transacƟons are recorded as necessary to permit the 
preparaƟon of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounƟng principles and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizaƟons of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevenƟon 
or Ɵmely detecƟon of unauthorized acquisiƟon, use, or disposiƟon of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent LimitaƟons of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements 
Because of the inherent limitaƟons of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projecƟons of any evaluaƟon 
of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements for future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements 
may become inadequate because of changes in condiƟons, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 



Opinion 
In our opinion, to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us on internal 
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial control system with reference to standalone financial statements 
and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operaƟng 
effecƟvely as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to 
standalone financial statements established by the Company considering the essenƟal components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For MMRS & CO 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 013830S 

CA Naresh Tummalapalli 
Partner 
M. No. 252120
UDIN: 25252120BMJIND4914

Place: 27-05-2025 
Date: Hyderabad 



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements secƟon of our 
report of even date) 

In terms of the informaƟon and explanaƟons sought by us and given by the Company and the books of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and 
belief, we state that: 

(i) In respect of fixed assets
a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full parƟculars, including quanƟtaƟve

details and situaƟon of Property, Plant, and Equipment, capital work-in-progress, and relevant
details of Right-of-Use assets.
B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full parƟculars of intangible assets.

b) Some of the property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, and Right-of-Use assets
were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a program of
verificaƟon, which in our opinion provides for physical verificaƟon of all the property, plant and
equipment, capital work-in-progress and Right-of-Use assets at reasonable intervals having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its acƟviƟes. According to the informaƟon and
explanaƟons given to us, no material discrepancies were noƟced in such verificaƟon.

c) The Company does not have any Immovable properƟes registered on it. So, clause 3(i)(c) is not
applicable

d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant, and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets during the year.

e) No proceedings have been iniƟated during the year or are pending against the Company as of
March 31, 2025, for holding any benami property under the Benami TransacƟons (ProhibiƟon)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.



(ii) 
a) The inventories except for goods-in-transit and stock held with third parƟes were physically

verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according
to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verificaƟon
by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
operaƟons. For stocks held with third parƟes at the year-end, the Management has carried out
physical verificaƟon and wriƩen confirmaƟons have also been obtained. In respect of goods-in
transit, the goods have been received subsequent to the year-end. No discrepancies of 10% or
more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noƟced on such physical verificaƟon of
inventories / alternate procedures performed, as applicable, when compared with books of
account.

b) The Company has working capital limits of Rs.4,50,00,000(Four crores fiŌy lakhs rupees only)
sancƟoned during the year from Punjab NaƟon Bank.

(iii) The Company has complied with the provisions of SecƟons 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of investments made.

(iv) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporƟng under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under subsecƟon (1)
of secƟon 148 of the Companies Act and such accounts and records have been so made and maintained;

(vi)In respect of statutory dues:
a. Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State

Insurance, Income, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess,
and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been regularly deposited by it
with the appropriate authoriƟes in all cases during the year.

b. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income, Sales Tax, Service Tax, the duty of Custom, the duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, cess, and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.



Nature Name 
of the Statute 

of Dues Period to which 
the amount 
relates 

Amount due Due date Date of 
payment 

CBDT Income Tax A.Y. 2024-25 Rs. 4,76,01,100/- 30/09/2024 Not Paid 
CBDT Income Tax A.Y. 2023-24 Rs. 3,61,58,541/- 30/09/2023 Not Paid 
CBDT Income Tax A.Y. 2022-23 Rs. 98,74,317/- 30/09/2022 Not Paid 
CBDT TDS A.Y. 2020-21 Rs. 41,86,068/- 31/05/2020 Not Paid 
CBDT TDS A.Y. 2021-22 Rs. 30,63,550/- 31/05/2021 Not Paid 
CBDT TDS A.Y. 2023-24 Rs. 13,88,183/- 31/05/2024 Not Paid 

c. Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on
March 31, 2025 on account of disputes are given below:

(vii) There were no transacƟons relaƟng to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(viii) 
a. In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or

in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.
b. The Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial insƟtuƟon or

Government or any Government authority.
c. The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unuƟlized term loans

at the beginning of the year hence, reporƟng under clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.
d. On an overall examinaƟon of the standalone financial statements of the Company, funds raised

on a short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by
the Company.

e. On an overall examinaƟon of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not taken any funds from any enƟty or person on account of or to meet the obligaƟons of its
subsidiaries.

f. The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securiƟes held in its
subsidiaries.



(ix) 
a. The Company has not raised the money by way of issuing securiƟes in the current financial year
b. During the year the Company has not made any preferenƟal allotment or private placement of

shares or converƟble debentures (fully or partly or opƟonally) and hence reporƟng under clause
(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) 
a. To the best of our knowledge, no material fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the

Company has been noƟced or reported during the year.
b. To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-secƟon (12) of SecƟon 143 of the Companies

Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

c. We have taken into consideraƟon the whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during
the year and provided to us when performing our audit.

(xi) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporƟng under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with SecƟon 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, where
applicable, for all transacƟons with the related parƟes, and the details of related party transacƟons have
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements, etc. as required by the applicable accounƟng
standards.

(xiii) 
a. In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size

and the nature of its business.
b. We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year under

audit.

(xv) In our opinion during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transacƟons with any
of its directors or directors of its holding company, subsidiary company, or persons connected with such
directors, and hence provisions of secƟon 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi) 
a) The Company is not required to be registered (b), (c) under SecƟon 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporƟng under clause (xvi)(a), (b), and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

d)The Group does not have any Core Investment Company as part of the group and accordingly
reporƟng under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.



(xvii)The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and in the 
immediately preceding financial year. 
(xviii) There is resignaƟon of the statutory auditors during the year, new auditor was duly appointed by
the board of directors.
(xix) On the basis of the financial raƟos, aging and expected dates of realizaƟon of financial assets and
payment of financial liabiliƟes, other informaƟon accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examinaƟon of the
evidence supporƟng the assumpƟons, nothing has come to our aƩenƟon, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicaƟng that Company is not capable
of meeƟng its liabiliƟes exisƟng at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporƟng is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabiliƟes falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

(xx)The Company has not covered under Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) acƟviƟes during the year.so,
clause (xx) under report is not applicable.

(xxi)According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, we report that CARO is applicable only to
the Company which is incorporated in India. In respect of Sameera Agro and Infra Limited (CIN:
L45201TG2002PLC038623)

For MMRS & CO 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 013830S 

CA Naresh Tummalapalli 
Partner 
M. No. 252120
UDIN:25252120BMJIND4914

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 27-05-2025 

























INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS SAMEERA AGRO AND 
INFRA LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of SAMEERA AGRO AND INFRA 
LIMITED (Formerly: SAMEERA INFRA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Cash Flow Statement, and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, 
and a summary of significant accounƟng policies and other explanatory informaƟon. 

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the informaƟon required by the Companies Act, 
2013(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
AccounƟng Standards prescribed under SecƟon 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounƟng principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit, total 
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
AudiƟng (SAs) specified under SecƟon 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibiliƟes under those Standards 
are further described in Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
secƟon of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiliƟes in accordance 
with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained 
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. 

Key Audit MaƩers 
Key audit maƩers are those maƩers that, in our professional judgment, were of the most significance 
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These maƩers were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these maƩers. We have 
determined the maƩers described below to be the key audit maƩers to be communicated in our 
report. 



Sr. 
No 

Key Audit MaƩer Auditor’s Response 

1 Revenue recogniƟon – Sale of goods 
Refer to Note 3 (h) “Revenue 
RecogniƟon” of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements under Significant 
AccounƟng Policies. 
Revenue from the sale of goods is 
recognized when control of the products 
being sold is transferred to the customer, 
which is mainly upon delivery and when 
there are no longer any unfulfilled 
obligaƟons. 

The Ɵming of revenue recogniƟon is 
relevant to the reported performance of 
the Company. The Management 
considers revenue as a key measure for 
the evaluaƟon of performance. There is a 
risk of revenue being recorded before the 
control is transferred. 

We have performed the following principal audit 
procedures in relaƟon to revenue recognized 
which 
include a combinaƟon of tesƟng internal controls 
and substanƟve tesƟng as under: 

• Assessing the appropriateness of the
Company's revenue recogniƟon
accounƟng policies in line with Ind AS 115
("Revenue from Contracts with
Customers") and tesƟng thereof.

• EvaluaƟng the integrity of the general
informaƟon and      technology ("IT")
control environment and tesƟng the
operaƟng effecƟveness of key IT
applicaƟon controls.

• Understanding the revenue recogniƟon
process, evaluaƟng the design and
implementaƟon of the Company's
controls with respect to revenue
recogniƟon.

• TesƟng the effecƟveness of such controls
over revenue cut-off at year-end.

• TesƟng the supporƟng documentaƟon
for sales transacƟons recorded during the
period closer to the year-end and
subsequent to the year-end, including
examinaƟon of credit notes issued
subsequent to the year's end to
determine whether revenue was
recognized in the correct period.

• Performing analyƟcal procedures on
current year revenue based on monthly
trends and where appropriate,
conducƟng further inquiries and tesƟng.



InformaƟon Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other informaƟon. The other informaƟon 
comprises the informaƟon included in the Report of the Directors and Management Discussion & 
Analysis but does not include the consolidated financial statements, consolidated financial 
statements, and our auditor’s report thereon.  
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other informaƟon and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon In connecƟon with our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informaƟon and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other informaƟon is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, 
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other informaƟon, we are required to report that fact.  
We have nothing to report in this regard fraud or error. In preparing the consolidated financial 
statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to conƟnue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, maƩers related to going concerned and using the going concern 
basis of accounƟng unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operaƟons or has no realisƟc alternaƟve but to do so. 
The Company's Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporƟng 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objecƟves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepƟcism throughout the audit. We also: 

• IdenƟfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecƟng a material misstatement resulƟng from fraud is
higher than for one resulƟng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenƟonal
omissions, misrepresentaƟons, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under SecƟon 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has an
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial
statements in place and the operaƟng effecƟveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounƟng policies used and the reasonableness of
accounƟng esƟmates and related disclosures made by the management.



• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounƟng and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or condiƟons that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
conƟnue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw aƩenƟon in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.

• Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or condiƟons may cause the Company to cease to conƟnue as
a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentaƟon, structure, and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transacƟons and events in a manner that achieves fair presentaƟon.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, 
individually or in the aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quanƟtaƟve materiality and qualitaƟve factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work in evaluaƟng 
the results of our work, and (ii) evaluaƟng the effect of any idenƟfied misstatements in the 
consolidated financial statements. 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other maƩers, the planned 
scope and Ɵming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we idenƟfy during our audit. 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relaƟonships and 
other maƩers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 
From the maƩers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those maƩers 
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit maƩers. We describe these maƩers in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulaƟon precludes public disclosure about the maƩer or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a maƩer should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communicaƟon. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by SecƟon 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:
A. We have sought and obtained all the informaƟon and explanaƟons which to the best

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
B. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examinaƟon of those books.
C. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive

Income, the Cash Flow Statement, and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

D. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under SecƟon 133 of the Act.



E. On the basis of the wriƩen representaƟons received from the directors as of March
31, 2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as of March 31, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of
SecƟon 164(2) of the Act.

F. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the operaƟng effecƟveness of
such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operaƟng effecƟveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

G. With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of SecƟon 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the
remuneraƟon paid/provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of SecƟon 197 of the Act.

H. With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to
us:
a. The Company does not have any pending liƟgaƟons which effects its financial

posiƟon in its consolidated financial statements.
b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivaƟve contracts

for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to

the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund by the Company

i. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or enƟty(ies), including foreign
enƟƟes (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
wriƟng or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or enƟƟes idenƟfied in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“UlƟmate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the UlƟmate Beneficiaries.

ii. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
enƟty(ies), including foreign enƟƟes.

iii. Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
noƟce that has caused us to believe that the representaƟons under subclause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

iv. The Company has not declared any dividend during the year and there is no
pending dividend payable that are declared in the previous year in accordance
with SecƟon 123 of the Act, as applicable



As stated in the Note under the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Board of Directors of the Company 
has proposed a final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the 
ensuing Annual General MeeƟng. The dividend proposed is in accordance with SecƟon 123 of the Act, 
as applicable. 
Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using 
accounƟng soŌware which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the 
Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. 

2. List of Subsidiaries on which consolidated financial statements are prepared are as follows
a) Globe conƟnental DisƟlleries Private Limited

For and on behalf of 
For MMRS & CO 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 013830S 

CA Naresh Tummalapalli 
Partner 
M.No.252120
UDIN: 25252120BMJINE9400

Date:27-05-2025 
Place: Hyderabad 



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ secƟon of 
our report of even date) 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub secƟon 3 of SecƟon 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial 
statements of SAMEERA AGRO AND INFRA LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025, in 
conjuncƟon with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the internal control with reference to 
consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essenƟal 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibiliƟes include the design, implementaƟon, and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevenƟon and 
detecƟon of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, and the 
Ɵmely preparaƟon of reliable financial informaƟon, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to the consolidated financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng 
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on 
AudiƟng prescribed under SecƟon 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial with 
reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effecƟvely in all material respects. 



Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operaƟng 
effecƟveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tesƟng and 
evaluaƟng the design and operaƟng effecƟveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.  

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to 
consolidated financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporƟng and the 
preparaƟon of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounƟng principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transacƟons and disposiƟons of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transacƟons are recorded as necessary to permit the 
preparaƟon of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounƟng principles and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizaƟons 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevenƟon or Ɵmely detecƟon of unauthorized acquisiƟon, use, or disposiƟon of the company's assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent LimitaƟons of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements 
Because of the inherent limitaƟons of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projecƟons of any evaluaƟon of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements for future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference 
to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in condiƟons, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 



Opinion 
In our opinion, to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us on internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial control system with reference to consolidated financial 
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
were operaƟng effecƟvely as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal financial control 
with reference to consolidated financial statements established by the Company considering the 
essenƟal components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For MMRS & CO 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 013830S 

CA Naresh Tummalapalli 
Partner 
M. No. 252120
UDIN: 25252120BMJINE9400

Place: 27-05-2025 
Date: Hyderabad 
























